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Dear Jakob Thomsen,
Thank you for your letter of 7 May 2012.

| herewith lodge a confirmatory application and am happy for it to be made
public.

First, by way of general grounds, | would like to make the following point.
When considering its position on the proposal to revise Regulation
1049/2001 on the public’s right of access to EU documents, the Council is
acting in a legislative capacity, together with the European Parliament.

When acting in a legislative capacity the Council is obliged to meet the
terms of the Lisbon Treaty - which includes so-called “internal” discussions
which are part of the legislative process - in particular Articles 15.1 and
15.3 para 5. The latter states that the Council “shall ensure publication of
the documents relating to legislative procedures”. Iin my view this should
cover all documents from the beginning to the end of the legislative
process.

There is another Treaty-based reason why the above should apply. Under
Articles 11.1 and 11.2 citizens, representative associations and civil society
have to be given “the opportunity to make known and publicly exchange
their views in all areas of Union action” and the institutions have to
maintain an open, transparent and regular dialogue with them. How is this
possible if they do not know what issues and alternatives are on the table?

Furthermore, Article 1 TEU states that the EU must act ‘as openly as
possible’, and the right of access to documents is enshrined in the EU’s
Charter of Fundamental Rights, which has the ‘same legal value’ as the
Treaties, according to Article 6 TEU.

The second general point | would like to make is that by assigning the three
documents in question to the category of “Meetings documents” or DS
documents it removed the obligation for the existence of the documents to
be listed on the public register. This seems strange as documents 6439/12,
8410/12. 8698/12, 8884/12 and 9271/12 are listed in the register. From this
it might be inferred that there has been a change of policy on the part of
the Council in order to conceal the existence of documents concerning a
legislative measure of concern to citizens and of fundamental importance in
an open, democratic system. |If documents relating to legislative
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proceedings are not even listed on the register, this undercuts the
effectiveness of the obligation of the Council to act in public and to publish
documents as regards legislative proceedings, as well as the more general
right of access to documents in the Charter and the obligation to act as
openly as possible.

As to the complaints:

a) You claim at two points that the three documents concern “sensitive
issues” and “highly sensitive issues”. As the General Court observed in
Access-Info v Council , if this was really the case, why are these documents
not classified under Article 9 of the Regulation? More important, however, is
that you have not made any argument as to why and in what way these
documents contain “highly sensitive” information.

This argument can not be maintained in the absence of valid reasons and
reasoning in this regard.

b) You claim that:

“Disclosure of the documents to the public at this stage would prejudice
the Council’s capacity to conduct frank and candid internal discussions on
certain highly sensitive issues, on which Member States still have divergent
positions, and would therefore seriously affect the chances of finding a
compromise on the legislative proposals within the Council. In addition,
since the negotiations with the European Parliament are yet to take place,
disclosure of internal drafting suggestions intended solely to facilitate
discussions at the Council’s preparatory body would risk having a significant
impact on the Council’s position in those negotiations.”

Again the view of the General Court in the Access-Info v Council case (para
76) supports my view that:

“the preliminary nature of the discussions relating to the Commission’s
proposal for a regulation does not, in itself, justify the application of the
exception provided for in the first sub paragraph of Article 4(3) of
Regulation No 1049/2001. That provision does not make a distinction
according to the state of progress of the discussions... the preliminary
nature of the ongoing discussions and the fact that no agreement or
compromise has yet been reached in the Council concerning those proposals
do not therefore establish that the decision-making process has been
seriously undermined.”

and further that:

“the principle, above all in the context of a procedure in which the
institutions act in a legislative capacity, and the exceptions must be
interpreted and applied strictly ..... If citizens are to be able to exercise
their democratic rights, they must be in a position to follow in detail the



decision-making process within the institutions taking part in the legislative
procedures and to have access to all relevant information.”

It should be noted that the EU institutions are bound by judgments rendered
by the EU courts and can not dis-apply the established Turco case law on
the basis that an appeal has been lodged in Access Info Europe to try and
reverse that case law. Appeals have no suspensatory effect and no interim
measures have been granted by the Court of Justice as regards this appeal.

Moreover, the claim that the disclosure of the documents could have a
“significant impact” on the Council positions in the negotiations with the
European Parliament seems strange. The parliament’s working documents,
draft reports and orientation votes are available to the public as are its
meetings - this alone seems to indicate that this reason invoked by the
Council is unfounded.

¢) You claim, extraordinarily, that there is an:

“absence of any element suggesting an overriding public interest to warrant
disclosure of the documents in question”

that the:

“protection of the decision-making process outweighs the public interest in
disclosure”

The notion that the wish of a legislature to meet in secret (by failing to
release the documents being discussed) outweighs the public interest of the
citizens on such a fundamental issue, namely the right to know what is
being discussed and proposed in a legislative process in order to know and
allow for public debate, has no place in a democracy worthy of the name.

The Council dismisses the issue of overriding public interest without actually
addressing it

d) On partial access the Council simply argues, without any reasoning, that:
“the exception to the principle of transparency applies to the content of
the entire documents, the General Secretariat is unable to grant you
partial access as provided for in Article 4(6) of the Regulation.”

e) In conclusion to suggest that access may be given “after the final
adoption of the act”, but still subject to Article 4.3 para 2. again has no
place in a democracy worthy of the name.

Yours sincerely,

Tony Bunyan



